
 

 

 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
PACKET 

 

FOR 
 

Tuesday, October 18, 2011 
 

Sherwood City Hall 
22560 SW Pine Street 

Sherwood, Oregon 
    

 
 

6:30pm City Council Work Session 
 

7:00pm Regular City Council Meeting 
 

City Council Work Session 
(Continuing after regular City Council meeting) 



 

City Council Agenda                                                                                                                                                        
October 18, 2011 
Page 1 of 2 

 
 
 
CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 6:30PM 
 
 
 
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 

3. ROLL CALL 
 
 

4. CONSENT: 
 
A. Approval of October 4, 2011 City Council Minutes 
 
B. Resolution 2011-087 Reappointing Joe Turner as the City of Sherwood  

Hearings officer 
 
 

5. PRESENTATIONS 
 

A. Introduction of City of Sherwood Police K-9 Team, Officer Corey Jentzsch and Azi 
(Police Chief Jeff Groth) 

 
 

6. CITIZEN COMMENTS 
 
 

7. NEW BUSINESS 
 

A. Resolution 2011-088 modifying resolution 2009-017 to establish a repayment schedule 
for an Interfund Loan from the General Fund to the Telecommunications Fund 
(Craig Gibons, Finance Director) 

 
 

8. PUBLIC HEARING 
 

A. Ordinance 2011-012 Amending Title 12 of the Municipal Code relating to renaming 
streets (Michelle Miller, Planning Associate) 
 

 

 

AGENDA 
 

SHERWOOD CITY COUNCIL 
October 18, 2011 

 
 

6:30pm City Council Work Session 
 

7:00pm Regular City Council Meeting 
 

City Council Work Session-Continued 
 

Sherwood City Hall 
22560 Pine Street 

Sherwood, OR  97140 

  

1



 

City Council Agenda                                                                                                                                                        
October 18, 2011 
Page 2 of 2 

9. CITY MANAGER  AND STAFF DEPARTMENT REPORTS 
 
 

10. COUNCIL ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
 

11. ADJOURN and RECONVENE TO WORK SESSION 
 
 

 
 
How to Find Out What's on the Council Schedule: 
City Council meeting materials and agenda are posted to the City web page at www.sherwoodoregon.gov, by the Friday 
prior to a Council meeting. Council agendas are also posted at the Sherwood Library/City Hall, the YMCA, the Senior 
Center, and the City's bulletin board at Albertson’s. Council meeting materials are available to the public at the Library.   
 
To Schedule a Presentation before Council: 

If you would like to appear before Council, please submit your name, phone number, the subject of your presentation and 
the date you wish to appear to the City Recorder Sylvia Murphy by calling 503-625-4246 or by e-mail to: 
citycouncil@sherwoodoregon.gov 
  

2

http://www.sherwoodoregon.gov/
mailto:citycouncil@sherwoodoregon.gov


DRAFT  

City Council Minutes 
October 4, 2011 
Page 1 of 8 

 

SHERWOOD CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 

22560 SW Pine St., Sherwood, Or 

October 4, 2011 

 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Mays called the meeting to order at 6:33 pm. 
 

2. COUNCIL PRESENT: Mayor Keith Mays, Council President Dave Grant, Councilors Bill 
Butterfield, Matt Langer and Krisanna Clark. Councilor Linda Henderson arrived at 6:38 pm and 
Councilor Robyn Folsom arrived at 6:45 pm. 

 
3. STAFF PRESENT: City Manager Jim Patterson, Community Development Director Tom 

Pessemier, Public Works Director Craig Sheldon, Economic Development Manager Tom Nelson, 
Finance Director Craig Gibons and City Recorder Sylvia Murphy.  

 
4. OTHERS PRESENT: Ray Pitz with the Sherwood Gazette. 

 
 

5. TOPICS DISCUSSED:  
 

A. Sidewalk Repair Assistance Program. Tom Pessemier and Craig Sheldon presented 
information regarding sidewalk repairs, repairs of pathways near schools and recapped 
prior Council discussion of collections of fees. Tom referenced the Municipal Code and 
responsibilities of property owners to repair sidewalks; he recapped funding and explained 
options for repairs. Tom explained the next steps needed regarding adoption of legislation 
supporting policy. Council discussion followed.  
 

6. ADJOURN: Mayor Mays adjourned the City Council Work Session at 6:55 pm and convened to an 
Urban Renewal Agency Board meeting (see URA Records). Mayor Mays stated the City Council 
regular meeting would follow the URA meeting. 
 
 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Mays called the meeting to order at 7:06 pm. 
 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 
 

3. ROLL CALL: 
 

3



DRAFT  

City Council Minutes 
October 4, 2011 
Page 2 of 8 

4. COUNCIL PRESENT: Mayor Keith Mays, Council President Dave Grant, Councilors Linda 
Henderson, Robyn Folsom, Bill Butterfield, Matt Langer and Krisanna Clark. 

 
5. STAFF AND LEGAL COUNSEL PRESENT: City Manager Jim Patterson, Community 

Development Director Tom Pessemier, Police Chief Jeff Groth, Finance Director Craig Gibons, 
Public Works Director Craig Sheldon, Library Manager Pam North, Planning Manager Julia 
Hajduk, Planning Associate Michelle Miller, Economic Development Manager Tom Nelson, Police 
Captain Mark Daniel, City Engineer Bob Galati, Community Services Director Kristen Switzer, 
Program Manager Amy Burns, Administrative Assistants Tina Ouellette and  Kirsten Allen and City 
Recorder Sylvia Murphy. City Attorney Paul Elsner. 

 
Mayor Mays addressed the Consent Agenda and asked for a motion.  

6. CONSENT AGENDA 
 
A. Approval of September 12, 2011 City Council Minutes 
B. Approval of September 20, 2011 City Council Minutes 
C. Resolution 2011-083 authorizing the City Manager Pro-Tem to sign a Leasing 

Agreement with Auto Leasing Specialists for the Leasing of Police Vehicles 
D. Resolution 2011-084 authorizing the City Manager to sign the 2011 IGA with Washington 

County for the purposes of continued participation in the Urban Area Security Initiative 
(UASI) 

E. Resolution 2011-085 authorizing the City Manager to enter into a contract with 
Environmental Science and Assessment, LLC (EA&A) for on-call Environmental 
Engineering Services 

 

MOTION: FROM COUNCIL PRESIDENT DAVE GRANT TO APPROVE THE CONSENT 
AGENDA, SECONDED BY COUNCILOR ROBYN FOLSOM. ALL COUNCIL MEMBERS VOTED 
IN FAVOR.  

Mayor Mays addressed the next agenda item. 

7. PRESENTATIONS 
 
A. Eagle Scout Recognition.  Eagle Scout recipient, Ian Taylor, was unable to attend, but 

provided information for Council regarding his project.  Mayor Mays stated Ian’s project was to 
erect a 35 foot flagpole along with benches and landscape in the City of Wilsonville in honor of 
Terry Lowrie a key figure in Wilsonville history.  Ian took seven weeks to complete his project, 
utilizing thirty five volunteers with over 225 hours of service. The flag pole was dedicated on 
Flag Day, June 14, 2009. Mayor Mays commended Ian for the work on his project and stated 
his Certificate of Achievement would be mailed.  

 
Mayor Mays addressed the next agenda item. 

B. Proclamation, Oregon Days of Culture.  Mayor Mays read the proclamation declaring 
October 1-8th, 2011 as Oregon Days of Culture. Cynthia Kirk a member of the Cultural 
Coalition of Washington County thanked Council for their support stating that the Cultural 
Coalition re-grants money from the Oregon Cultural Trust.   Ms. Kirk stated that the coalition 
has distributed $224,597 since 2005 and $15,000 has been to non-profit groups from 
Sherwood. Ms. Kirk stated there are seven eligible non-profit organizations in Sherwood and 
gave examples of some of the cultural activities that take place in Sherwood.  Ms. Kirk asked 

4



DRAFT  

City Council Minutes 
October 4, 2011 
Page 3 of 8 

June Reynolds from the Sherwood Historical Society and a recipient of grant funds to come 
forward and share information on programs supported by grant funds. Ms. Reynolds explained 
her involvement with a week long history camp each summer through the Sherwood Historical 
Society for the past nine years.  Ms. Reynolds stated that she has received funding from the 
coalition for seven of those years and explained some of the activities.   

 
Ms. Kirk asked Pam North Sherwood Library Manager to come forward and provide 
information on grant funding received by the Sherwood Library. Pam stated that money 
received from the coalition helped bring members of the Oregon Symphony to Sherwood to 
work with the storyteller.  Pam stated that they had to limit the participants because the 
program was so popular and thanked Council and the coalition for their support.   

Mayor Mays addressed the next agenda item. 

C. Sherwood Library Survey Summary Presentation.  Library Manager Pam North thanked 
Mayor Mays for being a participant in the 35th Anniversary of the We Are Readers Campaign 
and pointed out that the Mayor’s photograph was on a bookmark being circulated throughout 

the County.  Pam thanked City Manager Patterson for his support of the library and gifted him 
with a lifetime membership to the Friends of the Sherwood Library.  Pam discussed the patron 
satisfaction survey conducted this summer.  Pam stated that the most important feature of the 
Sherwood Library as indicated in the survey was for people to borrow library materials; the 
second being the WCCLS website that enables patrons to place items on hold and borrow 
from other libraries; and third to talk to library staff.  Pam informed the Council of the things 
patrons would like at the library, being more new materials, more activities for kids and teens, 
increased hours, more public access computers and more quiet spaces in the library.  Pam 
stated that circulation is up 10% with over a hundred new patrons registered monthly, 
explaining that the library could not do it without the growing volunteer program. 
 

Mayor Mays thanked Pam and asked for council questions or comments.   
 
Councilor Henderson asked regarding expanded hours if there were certain days that were 
asked for. Pam answered that they did not ask specifically, but anecdotally Sundays are very 
busy, also earlier on weekdays and later on weekends, basically expanding on current hours.  
 
Councilor Langer commented that he remembered the library when it was located in the old 
senior center and commended the library staff on the accomplishments made at the new 
location.  

 
Mayor Mays addressed the next agenda item. 
 

8. CITIZEN COMMENTS 
 
Marian Martin, 24100 SW Ladd Hill Rd, came forward and stated that she was representing some 
of the residents in the Brookman Road area.  Ms. Martin stated that she feels they haven’t been 

addressed and said they had questions and informed the Council of a letter that was sent to the 
City and wasn’t sure if it had been received. Mayor Mays confirmed that staff had received the 

letter and was preparing a response and offered to have staff forward the reply to Ms. Martin or 
offered to set up a meeting with interested residents to address their questions. Ms. Martin replied 
she would like to request a meeting. 

5



DRAFT  

City Council Minutes 
October 4, 2011 
Page 4 of 8 

 
Mayor Mays asked Tom Pessemier to coordinate a meeting with Ms. Martin, her neighbors and 
interested parties. Ms. Martin stated she appreciated the efforts and wants to make an informed 
decision and doesn’t feel they have all the information.  
 
Melvin Taylor, 16464 SW Brookman Rd, commented on the process for the Brookman Road 
annexation and stated that he felt left out of the process because he owns property on Brookman 
Road, but resides and votes in Eugene.  Mr. Taylor stated that he and his wife intend to live on the 
property after his wife retired. Mr. Taylor stated that he pays taxes on the property and the City did 
not make efforts to contact him. He stated there was a sign posted on the side of the road but he 
thought it was for the annexation of his neighbor’s property and said there was nowhere to pull off 
the side of the road to read the sign. Mr. Taylor commented regarding the notification letter and 
said he had not received the letter that went out to homeowners.  Mr. Taylor stated that he didn’t 

feel like his opinion mattered as he is not a Sherwood registered voter and wanted the Council to 
know how he felt as he is not able to vote. Mr. Taylor stated he’s sure the process is legal but it 
has left him upset. Mr. Taylor stated their dream for the property is annexation and hopes that 
someday it will be annexed and they could sell high, but can’t in the current real estate economy. 

Mr. Taylor said before they purchased the property he read through the Concept Plan and said it 
made a lot of sense, but doesn’t believe the timing is right. Mr. Taylor stated he contacted City 
staff and discussed annexation processes and said he found staff to be helpful and responsive but 
doesn’t understand the timing as he doesn’t see the need for 250 acres and doesn’t believe it’s 

going to develop overnight. Mr. Taylor said usually a City brings property in when needed and 
doesn’t see the need to impose restrictions on his property when it won’t be developed for years. 

Mr. Taylor stated he believes it was a money issue. Mayor Mays answered that it was not a 
money issue, that taxes are being phased in over ten years with almost no increase for the first 
five years. Mayor Mays stated that development is expected to be slow and property owners will 
be empowered to develop when they wanted to.   Mayor Mays stated that non-conforming or farm 
deferral uses today will continue to be that way if the property owners elect to continue in this 
manner. Mayor Mays stated that the City is trying to be a good neighbor with Urban Growth 
Boundary (UGB) expansions using the same process with all of them to date in reaching out to the 
community and doing master plans/adopting concepts plans and coordinating with Metro and 
Counties in the region and the final step of seeing if property owners and Sherwood residents 
want to vote on the annexation. Mayor Mays stated this process has worked so far and offered to 
invite Mr. Taylor to the same meeting to be set up for Ms. Martin so his questions could be 
addressed.  
  
Tim Goodman, Manager of Government Affairs for Comcast Cable, 9605 SW Nimbus Ave. 
Beaverton, came forward and stated he wanted to introduce himself to Council as the franchise 
agreement manager. Mr. Goodman stated he has met with staff and wanted to explain new 
Comcast programs to the Council. Mr. Goodman explained the Comcast Internet Essentials 
Program which is intended to provide broadband for low income individuals and families based on 
eligibility for the school free lunch program. Mr. Goodman stated that as part of the program these 
families can obtain a voucher to purchase a laptop for $150. Mr. Goodman stated that the program 
is intended to bridge the divide for families that cannot afford internet.   
 
Mayor Mays thanked Mr. Goodman and addressed the next agenda item. 

 

6



DRAFT  

City Council Minutes 
October 4, 2011 
Page 5 of 8 

9. NEW BUSINESS 
 
A. Resolution 2011-086 Resolution for City Manager Pro Tem to receive Out of Class Pay   

 
City Manager Jim Patterson stated that as the City Manager Pro Tem, Tom Pessemier will be 
working out of class and explained that it was standard practice for an employee working out 
of class to receive compensation, citing examples from the Police Department.  

 
Mayor Mays asked for questions or comments from the Council.  Having none, the Mayor 
asked for a motion.   

 

MOTION: FROM COUNCIL PRESIDENT DAVE GRANT TO ADOPT RESOLUTION 2011-
086, SECONDED BY COUNCILOR LINDA HENDERSON. ALL COUNCIL MEMBERS 
VOTED IN FAVOR.  

Mayor Mays addressed the next agenda item. 

 
10. PUBLIC HEARING 

 
A. Ordinance 2011-011 Amending multiple sections of the Zoning and Community 

Development Code including Divisions III, V, VI, and VII 
 

Mayor Mays stated at the September 20th Council meeting the Council opened the public 
hearing and received testimony and closed the hearing and with comments from Council 
members, the ordinance was continued to this day to allow staff to provide feedback based on 
Council comments. Mayor Mays stated the Council can choose to reopen the public hearing 
based on the information received tonight.  
 
Michelle Miller Associate Planner directed Council to Attachment 1 in the Council meeting 
packet with the proposed changes suggested by Council with respect to lot averaging. 
Michelle stated staff has provided the Council with alternative language, scenarios and 
provided Council with tables of information giving Council an idea of how residential zoning 
would be applied depending upon the zone and some adjustments with respect to the 
minimum or maximum lot size and how that is applied to the infill standards as well as possibly 
having a maximum lot average size in order to ensure there are no large lots in correlation with 
the smaller minimum lot size. Michelle stated staff has provided proposed code language and 
offered to answer Council questions.  
 
Michelle stated in reference to the construction bond, an alternative recommendation was 
made by the City attorney to increase this to 125%. 
 
Mayor Mays asked if the graph was options to modify the language.  
 
Michelle confirmed and said this is a 20% reduction of what this would look like with respect to 
the five separate zones that the City has. Michelle explained that Medium Density Residential 
Low through High Density already have a minimum lot size of 5000 and one of the concerns 
raised at the previous meeting was not going below the 5000 minimum lot size, so the impact 
to the lot averaging would be primarily for Low Residential.  Michelle stated that Council could 
consider adding that language to include the 5000 square foot lot minimum or add a smaller 
proportion of change to lot averaging. 

7



DRAFT  

City Council Minutes 
October 4, 2011 
Page 6 of 8 

 
Mayor Mays asked for feedback from Council on the five options. 
 
Mayor Mays stated he felt the 20% makes the minimum too low and has major concerns with 
this and said 10% or 15% is more palatable as part of the averaging. 
 
Councilor Henderson stated she would agree with 15% explaining when reviewing the graph 
and the thought of a small lot development on a corner lot with a setback and having it next to 
a 4000 square foot lot, she said these are so small and expressed concern with this.  
 
Councilor Langer stated that he believes the proposed language in alternative number 1 
added a provision to take care of this to put a floor on the 5000 square foot lot.  
 
Councilor Folsom stated she liked the language and the floor in the first one as well.  
 
Mayor Mays stated we would probably see more duplexes and triplexes in some 
neighborhoods.  
 
Council President Grant stated he is in support of 15% and agrees a 20% reduction is too 
small and gave examples of other neighborhood developments and said he believes it can be 
successful. 
 
Councilor Clark stated she is supportive of 15%. 
 
Councilor Butterfield agreed with 15%. 
 
Councilor Henderson said she is not ok with 20% and would like to remain at 15% as a 
maximum.    
 
Mayor Mays stated the general direction from the Council is a minimum of 15% of infill and 
under that scenario, you’ll need to change the provision, if this was the case, too… 
 
Michelle referenced section E and language of “no lot created under this provision shall be no 
less than 85% of the minimum lot size allowed in the underlying zoning district” and number 3, 
included the language of the minimum lot size cannot fall below 5000 square feet.  
 
Michelle asked if the Council would like language that pertains to a maximum of 15% as well. 
 
Mayor Mays replied, since we have some Councilors that want to keep it at a 5000 square feet 
and others at 15%, he suggested to the Council, it be 10 and 10 making the reduction no less 
than 90% of the minimum lot size and the maximum lot size not greater than 10% of the 
minimum lot size and removing provision 3 that no minimum lot can fall below the 5000 square 
foot.  Council members conceded.  
 
Mayor Mays asked Michelle about the performance bond change from 100% to 125%.  
 
Michelle confirmed and stated that an “irrevocable standing letter of credit” was also added to 
the wording of the ordinance.  City Attorney Paul Elsner clarified that it was an “irrevocable 
standby letter of credit”.   
 
Mayor Mays asked if Council wanted to re-open the public hearing, Council members 
indicated no. 
 
With no other Council comments, Mayor Mays made the following motion. 

 

8



DRAFT  

City Council Minutes 
October 4, 2011 
Page 7 of 8 

MOTION TO AMEND: FROM MAYOR MAYS TO AMEND ORDINANCE 2011-011 ON ITEM 

E OF LOT AVERAGING, CHANGE NUMBER 2 TO READ “NO LOT CREATED UNDER 

THIS PROVISION SHALL BE NO LESS THAN 90% OF THE MINIMUM LOT SIZE 

ALLOWED IN THE UNDERLYING ZONING DISTRICT”, ITEM 3 WILL BE DELETED WHICH 

STATES “NO LOT SIZE MAY FALL BELOW 5000 SQUARE FEET”, AND ITEM 4 WILL 

BECOME ITEM 3 AND STATE “THE MAXIMUM LOT CANNOT BE GREATER THAN 10% 

OF THE MINIMUM LOT SIZE”.  IN ADDITION MODIFY UNDER D IMPROVE GUARANTEES 

ITEM 2 CHANGE THE PERCENTAGE EQUAL TO “125% OF THE ESTIMATED COST” 

AND AT THE END, MODIFY TO STATE “STATE OF OREGON, A CASH DEPOSIT, OR 

IRREVOCABLE STANDBY LETTER OF CREDIT”.   MOTION SECONDED BY COUNCILOR 

BILL BUTTERFIELD. ALL COUNCIL MEMBERS VOTED IN FAVOR.  

Mayor Mays asked for discussion on the amended ordinance. None was heard. 

MOTION: FROM MAYOR MAYS TO READ CAPTION AND ADOPT ORDINANCE 2011-011 

AS AMENDED, SECONDED BY COUNCILOR HENDERSON. ALL COUNCIL MEMBERS 

VOTED IN FAVOR. 

Mayor Mays addressed the next agenda item.  

11. CITY MANAGER REPORT 
 
City Manager Jim Patterson stated he had nothing to report. 
   
Mayor Mays addressed the next agenda item.  
 

12. CITY MANAGER FAREWELL PRESENTATIONS 
 

Mayor Mays expressed appreciation for Jim’s leadership and gave a brief synopsis of Jim’s 

leadership with the City and in the community. Mayor Mays stated he’s sorry to be losing Jim and 
yet very proud of what Jim has done for the community and his commitment. Mayor Mays stated 
Jim is leaving the City in good hands and said whenever there’s been a change in staff, staff has 
grown to new levels and Jim has made a point of promoting from within and recognizing 
achievements. Mayor Mays commended Jim for getting the Council focused on self-improvement 
and having the city in good financial shape. Mayor Mays commended Jim for his leadership and 
oversight of the Cannery project, Community Center project, Langer Farms Parkway project and 
the tennis courts atop of the water reservoir. Mayor Mays presented Jim with bottles of wine and a 
framed Certificate of Appreciation from the City. 

Mayor Mays asked to receive other Council comments. 

Council President Grant commended Jim on his availability to him as a Council member and 
commented on his community service in youth coaching and announcing Sherwood youth sporting 
events.   
 
Councilor Bill Butterfield commended Jim for his leadership and commented regarding supporting 
and following Jim. 
 

9



DRAFT  

City Council Minutes 
October 4, 2011 
Page 8 of 8 

Councilor Linda Henderson commented on Jim’s integrity and his ability to think outside of the box 
citing an example of the Sherwood Cannery Square project and his willingness to allow her to be 
part of the process.   
 
Councilor Robyn Folsom commented that she had learned from Jim since meeting him ten years 
ago when he was volunteering with SURPAC.  Councilor Folsom presented Jim with a basket of 
cookies.   
 
Councilor Matt Langer stated he’s worked with Jim for a short period of time and commended him 
for his availability and thanked him for all his time in the community and wished him luck in 
Corvallis.   
 
Councilor Krisanna Clark commended Jim on his community service and leadership. Councilor 
Clark thanked him for his support in the community as well as to her and her family and the tribute 
to her late husband at a football game.   
 
Sherwood Police Chief Jeff Groth commended City Manager Patterson for his leadership style and 
expressed his appreciation for Jim’s support of the police department and staff. Chief Groth 
presented Jim with a plaque. 
 
Tualatin Valley Fire and Rescue Chief Michael Duyck and Captain Jim Davis came forward and 
commended City Manager Patterson for his public accessibility, partnership and support of the 
relationship between TVFR & the City. Chief Duyck presented Jim with a trophy of a bronze fire 
hat.   
 
Sherwood School Superintendent Heather Cordie and School Board Chair Andy Pihl came 
forward and thanked Jim for his passion for children, his friendship and partnership and 
collaboration with the school district and the hiring of a School Resource Officer. Board Chair Pihl 
commended Jim for this leadership and participation in the community with coaching and 
announcing youth sporting events and all the personal things he has done in the community that 
many people may not have knowledge of. Superintendent Cordie and Mr. Pihl thanked Jim for his 
service on behalf of the School Board and presented him with a gift basket. 
 

13. ADJOURN 
 
Mayor Mays adjourned the Council meeting at 8:15 pm and welcomed the public to stay for City 
Manager Patterson’s farewell reception.  

 

 
 
 
 
Submitted by: 
 

 

              
Sylvia Murphy, CMC, City Recorder    Keith S. Mays, Mayor   
 
 

10



 DRAFT 

Resolution 2011-087 
October 18, 2011 
Page 1 of 1 

 

 

 
 

RESOLUTION 2011-087 
 

A RESOLUTION REAPPOINTING JOE TURNER AS THE CITY OF SHERWOOD  
HEARINGS OFFICER 

 
WHEREAS, the Sherwood Zoning and Community Development Code provides for certain 
types of land use application to be heard by a Hearings Officer; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City Contracting Rules for Personal Service Contracts authorizes the City 
Manager to follow an informal selection process to identify and recommend a Hearings Officer; 
 
WHEREAS, the City determined that following the informal selection process will not interfere 
with competition among prospective candidates, reduce the quality of services, or increase 
costs; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City solicited potential candidates for Hearings Officer from three qualified 
candidates, including the current Hearing Officer, Joe Turner, and reviewing their qualifications 
and fees, and 
 
WHEREAS, after reviewing the qualifications and fees, the Planning Manager and City Manager 
Pro-Tem have recommended Joe Turner be re-appointed as Hearings Officer; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF SHERWOOD RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1. The City Council accepts the City Manager Pro-Tem’s recommendation to re-appoint 
Joe Turner as Hearing Officer. 

 
Section 2.  The City Manager Pro-Tem is hereby authorized to execute a professional services 
agreement with Joe Turner to serve as Hearings Officer with a term expiring October 2014. 
 
Section 3.  This Resolution shall be effective upon its approval and adoption. 
 
 Duly passed by the City Council this 18th day of October 2011. 
 
 
        _________________________ 
        Keith S. Mays, Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Sylvia Murphy, CMC, City Recorder 

11



 

Resolution 2011-088, Staff Report 
October 18, 2011 
Page 1 of 2 

Council Meeting Date: October 18, 2011 
 

Agenda Item: New Business 
 
 

TO:   Sherwood City Council 
 
FROM:  Craig L. Gibons, Finance Director 
 
SUBJECT: Interfund Loan Resolution 

 
ISSUE: 
 
Staff is seeking Council approval of RESOLUTION 2011-088, A RESOLUTION MODIFYING 
RESOLUTION 2009-017 TO ESTABLISH A REPAYMENT SCHEDULE FOR AN INTERFUND 
LOAN FROM THE GENERAL FUND TO THE TELECOMMUNICATIONS FUND. 
 
BACKGROUND:   
 
Under Oregon law, there are two types of interfund loans: Capital Project Loans and Operations 
Loans. The former must be repaid within ten years and the latter are to be repaid within a year 
(ORS 249.460(1)).  
 
Resolution 2009-017 authorized a transfer of $950,000 from the General Fund to the 
Telecommunications Fund.  Although the Resolution did not identify the nature of the 
transaction, the accompanying staff report called it an interfund loan with Sherwood Broadband 
responsible for repayment.  
 
According to the 2009 staff report, the loan was intended to retrospectively fund capital 
expenses for telecommunications services from FY06, FY07, FY08, and FY09.  However, there 
was only $608,823 in capital expenses for telecommunications during this four-year period. That 
means that the remainder of the loan ($341,177) was used to pay operating expenses.   
 
  Total Amount of Loan  $ 950,000 
  Capital Expenses    -608,823 
  Operations Expense             $  341,177  
 
So, the de facto situation is that we have two loans: a Capital Loan and an Operations Loan. As 
noted above, state law requires an interfund loan for operating expenses to be paid back within 
one year.  To date, the Telecom Fund has made one payment of $25,881 to the General Fund 
on this loan. This reduced the Operations Loan balance to $315,296.  The outstanding balance 
on the Capital Loan remains $608,823. 
 
 
 
 

12



Interfund Loan 
October 18, 2011 
Page 2 
 

Resolution 2011-088, Staff Report 
October 18, 2011 
Page 2 of 2 

FINDINGS:  
 

1. The Interfund Loan created by Resolution 2009-017 for $950,000 lacked the statutorily 
required language of an interfund loan. 

2. Only a portion of the Interfund Loan created by Resolution 2009-017 ($608,823) is for 
capital project expenditures; the remainder of the loan is an operations loan. The City is 
out of compliance on this loan, because the originating resolution did not meet statutory 
requirements.  

3. The City is out of compliance with state laws regarding the Operations Loan because it 
was not paid back within a year. This will be noted in our audit for FY11. Staff has 
discussed this issue with the audit firm.  

 
ACTION ITEMS:   
 
The Capital loan can be brought into compliance with state law by modifying Resolution 2009-
017 to: 1) identify the loan as a capital loan, 2) set out an interest rate, and 3) establish a debt 
service schedule. The attached resolution does this. The repayment schedule sets out the 
minimum payments that the Telecommunications Fund will make to the General Fund to repay 
this loan.  Repayment will begin in FY13 and will be concluded as quickly as is financially 
feasible. 
 
The Operations Loan cannot be brought into compliance. All that can be done is to pay it off as 
soon as possible. $315,296 is owed on the loan. The FY12 budget includes a debt service 
payment of $200,000. Later this year, staff will bring forth a supplemental budget that will 
increase that line item from $200,000 to $315,296.  Then, if the Telecomm Fund has sufficient 
revenue generation and expenditure savings, the loan will be paid off in full this year. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 

 Staff recommends that Council adopt Resolution 2011-088. 

13



 DRAFT  

Resolution 2011-088 
October 18, 2011 
Page 1 of 2, with Attachment A (2 pgs) 

 
 

RESOLUTION 2011-088 
 

A RESOLUTION MODIFYING RESOLUTION 2009-017 TO ESTABLISH A 
REPAYMENT SCHEDULE FOR AN INTERFUND LOAN FROM THE GENERAL 
FUND TO THE TELECOMMUNICATIONS FUND 

 
WHEREAS, City of Sherwood Resolution 2009-017 authorized a transfer of 
$950,000 from the General Fund to the Telecom Fund; and 

 
WHEREAS, the staff report accompanying Resolution 2009-017 stated that the 
Telecom Fund was to repay the General Fund from its surplus revenue; and  

 
WHEREAS, the transfer was an interfund loan pursuant to ORS 249.460(1) and 
was intended to finance the costs of capital improvements to the Sherwood 
Broadband utility (as enumerated in Resolution 2009-017, Attachment A) and 
ORS 294.460(2)(b), making it a Capital Loan pursuant to ORS 294.460(5)(a); 
and 
 
WHEREAS, ORS 294.460 (2) requires an Capital Interfund Loan to be repaid 
within ten (10) years; and 
 
WHEREAS, Resolution 2009-017 did not include a repayment period for the 
Capital Interfund Loan, and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council now intends to amend Resolution 2009-017 to 
include a repayment period consistent with the requirements of ORS 
294.460(2)(b); and 
 
WHEREAS, because only a portion of the loan was used for capital 
improvements, the remainder is treated as an Operations Interfund Loan; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council intends to approve a supplemental budget for FY12 
to provide for repayment of the Operations Interfund Loan; and  
 
WHEREAS, repayment of both the Capital Interfund Loan and the Operations 
Interfund Loan are a high priority objective of the Telecom Fund.   
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF SHERWOOD RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 

14



 DRAFT  

Resolution 2011-088 
October 18, 2011 
Page 2 of 2, with Attachment A (2 pgs) 

Section 1.  Resolution 2009-017 created an interfund loan of $950,000 from the 
General Fund to the Telecom Fund (attached as Attachment A). 
 
Section 2.  Resolution 2009-017 is amended to provide that: 
 

a. The Transfer of $950,000 is an interfund loan to the Telecom Fund.  The 
loan shall consist of two parts:  $341,177 as an Operations Loan, and 
$608,823 as a Capital Loan. 

b. The Capital Loan will be paid back at the LGIP interest rate equal to the 
rate in effect at the end of each fiscal year and according to the following 
schedule. 

 
Principle borrowed: $608,823  

   Interest rate: 
 

Variable  Based on End of FY LGIP Rate 
Term: 

 
7 years 

   Annual payment: $150,000   + Lump Sum at Term (about $178,500) 

       Payment Beginning Interest 
 

Cash Ending 
# Date balance Rate Interest Payment balance 

 
3-6-09 608,823  1.14% 2,207.13  0          611,030  

 
6-1-10 611,030  0.55% 3,360.67  0          614,391  

 
6-1-11 614,391  0.50%      3,071.95  0          617,463  

 
6-1-12 617,463  0.5%      3,087.31  0          620,550  

1  6-1-13 620,550  0.5%      3,102.75  150,000          473,653  
2  6-1-14 473,653  0.5%      2,368.26  150,000          326,021  
3  6-1-15 326,021  0.5%      1,630.11  150,000          177,651  
4  6-1-16 177,651  0.5%         888.26  178,539                    0  

     Interest rate for FY12 and beyond is an estimate. 
 

c. The Operations Loan shall be repaid on a schedule to be approved by the 
City Council in a Supplemental Budget. 

 
Section 3.  This Resolution shall be effective upon its approval and adoption. 
 
Duly passed by the Sherwood City Council this 18th day of October 2011. 
 
 
          
 Keith S. Mays, Mayor 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
 
________________________________ 
Sylvia Murphy, CMC, City Recorder 

15



Hone dtlvTìølatia Ntw NatlotølØLlliþ R6uge

RESOLUTTON 2009-017

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE SUPPLEMENTAL BUDGET AND MAKING
APPROPRIATIONS

WHEREAS, supplemental budgets are required:
o when a government receives revenue it did not plan for in its budget and

wishes to spend the extra revenue
o occurrences or conditions which were not known at the time the budget

was prepared require changes in financial planning

WHEREAS, the following events have occurred:
o the sale of property at15824 and 15804 SW 1" Street to the URA allowed

the City to make the final payment to Bob Jones lnc. for the Cannery
property

. Oregon Department of Revenue requires that all negative fund balances
be handled by either procuring a loan or transferring money from another
fund.

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF SHERWOOD RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. Appropriations for the 2008-09 fiscal year are
increased/(decreased) in the following amounts:

General Fund - Sources General Fund - Uses

Sale of Fixed Assets

Total Adjustment

Resolution 2009-017
March 3.2009
Pagel of2

264,000

264,000

Capital Outlay

Transfers Out

Transfers Out

Transfers Out

Contingency

Total Adjustment

264,000
133,187

950,000

370,000

(1,453,187)

264,000

Resolution 2011-088, Exhibit A 
October 18, 2011, Page 1 of 2

16



Section 2. This Resolution shall be effective upon its approval and adoption.

Duly passed by the Gity of Shenruood Gouncil this 3'd day of March 2009.

ATTEST:

Resolution 2009-017
March 3. 2009
Page 2 of 2

urphy, City

Resolution 2011-088, Exhibit A 
October 18, 2011, Page 2 of 2

17



Ordinance 2011-012, Staff Report 
October 18, 2011 
Page 1 of 1  

            Council Meeting Date: October 18, 2011 
 

               Agenda Item:  Public Hearing 

 

TO:  Sherwood City Council 
FROM:  Michelle Miller, AICP Associate Planner 
Through: Tom Pessemier, Community Development Director 
Subject: Development Code Clean-Up: Title 12.06 Street Renaming 

 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

Summary: As part of a multi-phase code clean-up project with the goal of providing a more clear and usable 
code for both citizens and developers alike, the proposed amendments include moving the street renaming 
language from Title 16, the Sherwood Zoning and Development Code to Title 12, Streets, Sidewalks and 
Public Places. 
 
Previous Council Action: A public hearing was held on September 20, 2011 pertaining to Division VI, Public 
Infrastructure which included § 16.108.010. C. “Street Renaming.” That hearing was continued to October 4, 
2011 where Council adopted the amended code language. 
 
Background/Problem Discussion: The City began the multi-phase code update in April 2010, with updates 
to multiple sections of the Sherwood Zoning and Development Code. The proposed Code amendments were 
identified to clarify that the street renaming process was not a land use decision and better suited in the 
Municipal Code under Title 12, “Streets, Sidewalks and Public Spaces”.  Via a separate ordinance, the Council 
was asked to consider amendments removing the street renaming standards from Chapter 16 and this 
ordinance is necessary to ensure the process is properly moved to Chapter 12.  The application, notice, 
process, and criteria for renaming streets remain unchanged. 
 
Alternatives: Approve, approve with modifications or deny the Planning Commission recommendation.  
 
Financial Implications: There will be costs associated with making the Code updates available online and 
also updates to forms and providing informational materials to the public.  
 
Recommendation: Staff recommends that the City Council hold a public hearing and determine whether to 
adopt the attached Ordinance 2011-012 or direct staff to make additional modifications to the proposed text 
changes based on additional information submitted.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Attachments:   

Ordinance  
Exhibit 1:  Proposed Municipal Code Amendments to Title 12.06, Street Renaming 

18



 DRAFT  

Ordinance 2011-012 
October 18, 2011 
Page 1 of 2, with Exhibit 1 (3 pgs) 
 

 
 

ORDINANCE 2011-012 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING TITLE 12 OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE RELATING TO 
RENAMING STREETS 
 

 WHEREAS, the City adopted Title 12, Streets, Sidewalks and Public Places in 
1974 via Ordinance 653 § 1-24, which established policies and procedures related to 
streets, right of way and public places; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Zoning and Community Development Code language 
addressing “street renaming” was adopted by Ordinance 2005-006, § 5; Ordinance 
1992-947, § 1; and Ordinance 1991-922; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the “street renaming” regulations were removed from Chapter 
16.108 by Ordinance 2011-011 to make it clear that the renaming of streets is not a land 
use decision; and 
 
 WHEREAS, The City Council wants to retain the process to review any changes 
to established street names; and 
 
  WHEREAS, the proposed street renaming standards are more appropriate to be 
located in the Municipal Code as Chapter 12.06; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF SHERWOOD ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS:  
 
 Section 1. Findings.  After full and due consideration of the evidence presented, 
the Council finds that the text of the Sherwood Municipal Code shall be amended to 
include chapter 12.06, Street Renaming; therefore, the Council adopts the amendments 
contained in Exhibit 1.  
 
 Section 2. Approval.  The proposed amendment for the Municipal Code 
Amendment identified in Exhibit 1, is hereby APPROVED. 
 
 Section 3. Manager Authorized.  The City Manager is hereby directed and 
authorized to take such action as may be necessary to document this amendment, 
including necessary updates to Chapter 12 of the Municipal Code in accordance with 
applicable City ordinances and regulations. 
 
 Section 4. Effective Date. This ordinance shall become effective the 30th day 
after its enactment by the City Council and approval by the Mayor. 

19



 DRAFT  

Ordinance 2011-012 
October 18, 2011 
Page 2 of 2, with Exhibit 1 (3 pgs) 
 

  
 
Duly passed by the City Council this 18th day of October 2011.  
 
 
 
        _________________________ 
        Keith S. Mays, Mayor 
 
Attest:   
 
 
_________________________  
Sylvia Murphy, CMC, City Recorder     
 
          AYE NAY 

        Clark  ____ ____ 
Langer  ____ ____ 
Butterfield ____ ____ 
Folsom ____ ____ 
Henderson ____ ____ 
Grant  ____ ____ 
Mays  ____ ____ 

 

20



 

 

Title 12 Streets, Sidewalks and Public Spaces 

12.06  STREET RENAMING 

12.06.010.   Street Name Standards 

Whenever practicable, historical names will be considered in the naming or renaming of public roads. 

Historical factors to be considered shall include, but not be limited to the following: 

A.    Original holders of Donation Land Claims in Sherwood. 

B.    Early homesteaders or settlers of Sherwood. 

C.    Heirs of original settlers or long-time (50 or more years) residents of Sherwood. 

D.    Explorers of or having to do with Sherwood. 

E.    Indian tribes of Washington County. 

F.    Early leaders and pioneers of eminence. 

G.   Names related to Sherwood's flora and fauna. 

H.    Names associated with the Robin Hood legend. 

 

12.06.020.   Street Name Criteria and Classification 

A.    All streets named or renamed shall comply with the following criteria: 

 1.   Major streets and highways shall maintain a common name or number for the entire 

 alignment. 

 2.   Whenever practicable, names as specified in this Section shall be utilized or retained. 

 3.   Hyphenated or exceptionally long names shall be avoided. 

 4.   Similar names such as Farview and Fairview or Salzman and Saltzman shall be avoided. 

 5.   Consideration shall be given to the continuation of the name of a street in another 

 jurisdiction when it is extended into the City. 

B.    The following classifications (suffixes) shall be utilized in the assignment of all street names: 

 1.   Boulevards: North/south arterials providing through traffic movement across the 

 community. 

 2.   Roads: East/west arterials providing through traffic movement across the community. 

21



 

 

 3.   Avenues: Continuous, north/south collectors or extensions thereof. 

 4.   Streets: Continuous, east-west collectors or extensions thereof. 

 5.   Drives: Curvilinear collectors (less than 180 degrees) at least 1,000 feet in length or more. 

 6.   Lanes: Short east/west local streets under 1,000 feet in length. 

 7.   Terraces: short north/south local streets under 1,000 feet in length. 

 8.   Court: All east/west cul-de-sacs. 

 9.   Place: All north/south cul-de-sacs. 

 10.   Ways: All looped local streets (exceeding 180 degrees). 

 11.   Parkway: A broad landscaped collector or arterial. 

C.   Except as provided for by this section, no street shall be given a name that is the same as, similar 

 to, or pronounced the same as any other street in the City unless that street is an extension of 

 an already-named street. 

D.   All proposed street names shall be approved, prior to use, by the City. 

 

12.06.030 Petition Process and Contents 

A.    An action to rename a street in the City may be initiated by the Council: 

 1.     On its own action; or 

 2.   If a person files a petition as described in this section accompanied by a fee reasonably  

  related to the costs of the process. 

B.    A petition for naming or renaming a street shall include the following: 

 1.    A statement of the reasons for the proposed name change. 

 2.    The names and addresses of all persons owning any real property abutting the road  

  proposed to be renamed. 

 3.    Signatures of either owners of sixty percent (60%) of the land abutting the subject road  

  or sixty percent (60%) of the owners of land abutting the subject road. 

 

 

22



 

 

12.06.040    Notice and Hearing 

A.   When a proceeding has been initiated under this section, the Council shall establish a time and 

 place for a hearing to consider whether the proposed name change is in the public interest. 

B.    At least ten (10) days prior to the date of hearing, notice of the proposed name change shall be 

 provided as follows: 

 1.   Notice by posting in no less than two (2) conspicuous places abutting the subject road; and 

 2.   Notice by publication in a newspaper of general circulation in the area of the subject road. 

C.    During or before a hearing under this section, any person may file information with the Council 

 that alleges any new matter relevant to the proceedings or controverts any matter presented to 

 the Council. 

D.    After considering the matters presented under this section, the Council shall determine whether 

 the name change is in the public interest and shall adopt findings and an ordinance granting or 

 denying the request. 

E.    When the ordinance becomes final, the Council shall cause the ordinance to be recorded with 

 the County Clerk who shall cause copies of the ordinance to be filed with the Department of 

 Public Works, the Department of Assessment and Taxation and with the County Surveyor. 

F.   For the purposes of this section, "owner" means the record holder of legal title to the land, 

 except that if there is a purchaser of the land according to a recorded land sale contract, the 

 purchaser is the owner. 

23



September-11

Est. Est.
Usage People People 

Count Served Count Served
Leagues 3 350 3 700
Rentals 21 525 111 2850
Other (Classes) 1 4 1 4
[1]  Day Use 4 10 15 26

Total Usage 889 3580

FY 11-12

Income Sep-11 YTD
Rentals $1,380.00 $6,545.00
League fees (indoor) $1,395.00 $8,300.00
Card fees (indoor) $80.00 $270.00
Day Use $19.00 $49.00
Merchandise
Snacks $208.25 $520.00
Classes $280.00 $280.00
Total Income $3,362.25 $15,964.00

FY 10-11
Income Sep-10 YTD
Rentals $1,255.00 $8,445.00
League fees (indoor) $8,523.00 $16,936.00
Card fees (indoor) $180.00 $660.00
Day Use $37.00 $59.00
Merchandise
Snacks $288.25 $676.75
Classes $560.00 $840.00
Total Income $10,843.25 $27,616.75

Field House
Monthly Report September 2011  

Sep-11 YTD

24



Active Rec happenings during the month of September 2011 

Youth football played 16 home games at Sherwood high school during the month. 

Youth Soccer played approximately 100 recreational games at various locations during the month, they 

also had 13 classic games at home during that same time. 

Youth Volleyball held matches at Archer Glen, Laurel Ridge and Sherwood Middle school during the 

month. 

Youth Cheer has been practicing at Edy Ridge this year and cheering at all of the home football games. 

Greater Portland Soccer District has been renting the Snyder Park Soccer field for a least one game on 

Sundays. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Respectfully Submitted  

October 4, 2011 

Lance Gilgan  

25


	City Council Packet Cover 10.18.11
	City Council Agenda for 10.18.11
	10.04.11 City Council Minutes- DRAFT
	Resolution 2011-087 to reappoint Hearings Officer Joe Turner-DRAFT 10.18.11
	Resolution 2011-088 Repaying General Fund from Telecom Fund-STAFF REPORT 10.18.11
	Resolution 2011-088 Repaying General Fund from Telecom Fund-DRAFT 10.18.11
	Resolution 2011-088 Repaying General Fund from Telecom Fund-EXH A 10.18.11
	Ordinance 2011-012 Amending Muni Code Chap 12 St. Renaming-EXEC. SUMMARY 10.18.11
	Ordinance 2011-012 Amending Muni Code Chap 12 St. Renaming-DRAFT 10.18.11
	Ordinance 2011-012 Amending Muni Code Chap 12 St. Renaming-EXH 1 10.18.11
	Fieldhouse Report September 11
	Recreation Report September 2011



